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on a flat wooded site at a rurael intersection is Pleasaﬂt Grov

Locavad
Camo Meating Grownd. The camp ground consists of a flve-acre ooon are
surrounded on four sides by small Irame structures called ”LeﬂuS Grlglw

nally the tents were somewhat temporary structures built of logs and hewed
poles, occupied by families while the camp meetlng was in session. Almost.
all of the tents have been replaced by more modern cabins in recent years.
At the center of the open area is a sheltered gathering place callad the
"arbor'", with a small frame church to the northeast. To the southeast,
across the road which encircles the site, is the old graveyard wilh a new
cemetery to the rear.

t tong and

a pent TIo
roof cover is

rding covers uhe

gable encds contain

The arbor 1s a large open-siced
sixty feet wide with a two-part roof: ot
feet below the eaves that extends around all
asbestos shingle over earlier wooa shingle.
expossd wall surface above the pent; the east
rectangular louvered opcnings.

The structursl system of the arbor, said to date from 1830, 5 mortice
and tenon. The plate of the centrai ridge roof is su@ported by a evy hand
hewn peams, chamfered up to the helgi about nine Tfeet and :
bracad ao the vpper corners. dhe sams post dl?O ubupor the
the puliv, ich is notched in a Ifew feel peoow Thc

main vosos o lew feel below where o
are e beams which extend to the plate wnich Iorms the

the This plate is in wurn supported by & vow of
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the ends and seven on each side. With bthe exceptlon ol ths
the south side, which is an apparenv reolacement, the tiwmbers all g o
be original.

The rloor of the arbor is earth covered with sawdust. Rows of siwdle
beﬁc;es Wwith common runners occupy most of the inlterior. Four long rows

a vowzids the west end and take up two-thirds of the interior. In the
center of the remalning third is a raised speakers' platform with a Llower

) N . 3 B o N al % 3 RN
orst L0 the rear (west) end having benches facing east for the choir.

the choir and the speakers' platform are short rows of benches whi

H

The church, located to the northeast of the pavilion in the central
square, 1s not the originsl ons, but the last of a series sald to have
£

3
occupiea the site. The maln block is an unpretentious frame gao*c~'oo
stracture, the only adormment being the delicate sawn barge board wnich

repeats On the eaves and cornice returns, and the colorful stainsd z.ass
windows zet within rectangular molded frames. Somewhat recent additions

ol
©o tne crurch are the gable-roof entrance vestibule to the west and a one-
story adcitlion stretching across the rear.

ross the road, was

once a uch0u7*oush
ser's dwelling. I is o one-story Irams
! : having returns at the 2aves, and Narrow Corngy
5. On whe front Qsouoz> end 1s a one-story nip rool exlens.on,

tbly a closed-in porch, with a centrally placed entrance. Sheltering
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the entrance is a porch with a gable roof supportsd by simple square posts.

The tents that line the square perimeter of the camp ground are cabin-
like structures. In 1902, all of the tents were btorn down except one, still
standing in the south row. It is distinguished by a large pointed-arched
window 1n the gable end. The materials and method of construction of the
present tents are varied; howsver, for the most part they have the early form--
a rectangular one~story cabin with a gable roof, the end facing inwards having
a shed roof across the front sheltering the entrance.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Pleasant Grove Camp Meeclqg CGround i1s one of the.few of its kind re-
maining in North Carolina. 1T was established at its present location in
the same vear (1830) as the ceamp meeting ground at Rock Springs [nominated

to the National RoolJuer 2-2L-72] but trhe meeting was an outeroath of a
O

much earlier one e o The buildings, especially The

central arbor, are ;uue1@8u1ug examples of vernacular architecture. The

chief significance of the complex, however, is as a rare and still-func-

tioning remnant of the Great Revival Movement, the extraordinary populist
teenth

religious phenomenon that swept through rural Amsrica in the nine
CertTury.

Pleasant Grove C
("Jor the uses and purposes
Episcopal Church and county

|
| bought from Matthew ticCorkle
Ground. Pleasa:

b Grove is sal& to
and was begun as an outgrowth of ¢

an acting as v the Camo

\Y
earlier (circa 1787) McWnirter Camp

been used as cerly aso October, 1829

Ground which was restricted 1n growth because tihers was not a good water
supply. The first permanent tents at McWhirter, howsver, were built be-
tween 1815 and 1820. The $125 contract to build the arbor ab Pleasant
Grove was let to John C. Rape--"a small, lean man who loved to smole his
nome-grown tobacco in his clay pipe.” Before the arbor was complated,
Rape 1s said to have required the help of his neighbors, particulariy wiat
of George Alligon Winchester, whose grandson recalled in later years thab
ne "was assigned To put on all tie
new and few carpenters knew how o put one on.'" Pleasant Grove, with an
adequate water supply nearby, grew rapidly‘during the period befors the
Civil War. There are sald to have been more than 200 tents built before
1860, most of them constructed of logs, forming two squares around the

i arbor; of these, only one survives. Jacob Wolfe, one of the original

| trustees, is credited with having built the Llfcb tent in Pleasant Grove.
' In addition to the arbor and tents, a church was constructed on the camp
1 grounds in 1831 which, though remodeled in 1860, is thought o have been
replaced by the present 1895 siructure.
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Four other calls were blown by the trumpsteer, proclaimin
services at 8 a.m., 11 a.m., 3 p.m. and & p.m. The last wa ‘
Candle light." Provision for lighting the arbor includ OI a twenty-gix-place
candle holder, said to have besn aboul eighlteen inches in widih by two-and-
one~half or three feet high, which hung inside the arbor. Lighting for the

S b

arbor and tents was provided by Ifires buill on mounds oif stons

arca between the
AL the be-

placed fifty to ssventy-five feet from each corner of the arbor.
ginning of the camp meeting the ministers would come Ifrom far and near on
horgeback to preach. For a number of ysars, they receivec no pay Lor preaching
but there were about twenty rail pens built for the preachers' horses, and
members of the camp watered and fed them.

The camp ground was expanded in the second hall of the n1ﬂCDOOnuﬁ century.
On December 29, 1868, Charles H. Austin and his wife, Fanny, sold the trustees
of '"the Plisasant Crovc circult of the South Carolina conlerence of the
Methodist Episcopal Church South" two-and-one-third acres adjacent to the camp
ground, and on November 5, 1885, J. C. Bates and his wife Jane H. Bates, con-
veyed Iour acres to the "Fieasant Grove Church."

An interesting story is attributed to the camp meeting of 1886 which was
held at nearby Antioch. A Brother Gooiman Laney i1s sald to have »r !
service that an earthquake would come anc shake the sinners, his pray
coinciding with the Great Charleston Barthquake of 1886. Laney's grave, which
is located at Pleasant Grove Cemstery, bears the following inscription: "He
prayed for an earthquake in Antioch Campground . . . and it was answered."

A general decline in interest in the camp meetings led to an order by the
trustees for closing the camp ground in 1902. All the tents but one wers torn
down and hauled away. In October, 1911, the trusises deeded two acres to the
Union County Board of Education for use as a school; however, by January 5,
1926, the school was abandoned, and the school building and the property where
it stood reverted to the trustees of Plsasant Grove Church. On June 20, 1931,
Lawson Howey deeded two acres contlguous with Pleasant Grove Church property to
the trustees of the church. Led by Henry C. Byrum, Pleasant Grove Camp Meeting
began to abtract renewed interest, and by 1935 the camp had rebuilt seventy-one
tents. It has continued to grow thirough the years.
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